
Page # 1 of 1 Posted: November 1, 2013 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT CORRINA 
WILLIAMS, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 877-5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
To: Jimmy Dunn 

Heather Gantt 
H. Gerald Jowers 
Mark Maciel  
Mac McKinney 
Rohan Ramlackhan 
Eric Weiss  
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Laura Smith 
Kelly Carson 

 
RE: Agenda – November 04, 2013 - 6:30 PM 

Commission Chambers, City Hall 
 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 7, 2013 MEETING  
 
4. SWEARING IN OF NEW MEMBERS 
 

ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
5. 14362 Siplin Road – (Black Lake Preserve PUD) 
 Rezoning 

Parcel ID # 34-22-27-0000-00-008, 34-22-27-0000-00-029, 34-22-27-0000-00-007 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

To the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, December 
2, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st 
floor. 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 
A REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

OCTOBER 7, 2013 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Chairman James Gentry called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and 
Zoning Board to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers. The invocation 
was given followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Chairman James Gentry, Vice-Chairman James Dunn, Board Members: Mac McKinney, 
Rohan Ramlackhan, and Eric Weiss 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Mark Maciel and Kent Horsley - excused 
 
STAFF PRESENT:   
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Ed Williams, Senior 
Planner Stephen Pash, and Customer Service Representative Kathy Rathel 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held on September 9, 2013. 
 

Motion by Jimmy Dunn to approve the above minutes.  Seconded by Eric Weiss, the 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
ANNEXATION, REZONING, FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS 
(Public Hearing) 
 

4. 1150 & 1170 Elboc Way (Mary P. & Clint O. Webster) 
Senior Planner Stephen Pash presented a Rezoning and Future Land Use Map Amendment 
application for 1150 & 1170 Elboc Way.  The applicant wants to operate an office at 1150 
Elboc Way and use 1170 Elboc Way as a temporary storage of metals for a recycling 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

business.  The City’s Legal Affairs is working up an agreement to allow this use on a 5-year 
temporary basis.  No outdoor storage, activities, or sales of any type will be allowed with the 
temporary use.  All storage will be inside a warehouse.  The rezoning from I-2 to C-2 is 
consistent with the surrounding area around State Road 50.  Staff recommends approval of 
Ordinances 13-66 and 13-67 with the temporary agreement. 
 
James Gentry questioned what if an agreement could not be worked out.  Senior Planner Pash 
stated the owner has already met and agreed to all terms of the agreement.  
 

Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of 1150 & 1170 Elboc Way rezoning 
with Staff Recommendations and with the condition that the use be allowed subject 
to the agreement of the 5-year temporary usage (Attached Exhibit “A”).  Seconded 
by Jimmy Dunn, the motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
VARIANCE (Public Hearing) 

 
5. Windtree Gardens Condominiums Pool Fence 

Senior Planner Steve Pash presented a Variance request for the Windtree Gardens 
Condominiums pool fence.  The applicant is requesting a variance to allow an 8’ tall un-
climbable chain link fence around the swimming pool.  Staff finds this request meets all of 
the criteria for the variance request and recommends approval. 
 
Eric Weiss asked if a previous fence approved was useful, Senior Planner Pash responded 
yes, it helped eliminate the after-hours use by non-residents.  Mac McKinney asked what 
made a ‘non-climbable’ fence.  Senior Planner Pash explained it was the 1” link squares. 

 
Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the variance for Windtree Gardens 
Condominiums pool with Staff Recommendations (Attached Exhibit “B”).  
Seconded by Rohan Ramlackhan, the motion carried unanimously 5-0. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 
APPROVED:   ATTEST: 
   
 
 

  

   
Chairman James Gentry  Customer Service Rep Kathy Rathel 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 4 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 5 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 6 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 7 
 

 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 8 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 9 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 10 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 11 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 12 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 13 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 14 
 



 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 15 
 

 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 
 

DATE:  November 1, 2013 MEETING DATE: November 4, 2013 
 

SUBJECT: Rezoning (Ordinance 13-68) 
14288, 14350, 14362 Siplin Road  

 PROJECT NAME Black Lake Preserve (35.176 +/- Acres) 
 PARCEL ID# 34-22-27-0000-00-007 
 PARCEL ID# 34-22-27-0000-00-008  
 PARCEL ID# 34-22-27-0000-00-029 
  

ISSUE: Request for approval of Ordinance 13-68 to rezone 35.176 +/- acre Black Lake 
Preserve property from “NZ” (No Zoning) to “PUD” (Planned Unit Development) 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  

OWNER/APPLICANT: Hanover Black Lake, LLC 
  

CURRENT ZONING: NZ – No Zoning 
  

PROPOSED ZONING: PUD – Planned Unit Development 
  

CURRENT FLU: SUB-Suburban Residential 
  

PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  

SUMMARY: 
 At the request of the property owner, the City has annexed the subject 

property into the City and amended the future land use designation of the 
property from Orange County Rural/Agricultural to City Suburban 
Residential. The property owner now requests rezoning of the subject 
property to Planned Unit Development (PUD) to allow for development of 
a single family residential subdivision of 91 dwelling units. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 13-68, rezoning the 35.176 +/- 

acre property from NZ to PUD subject to the conditions outlined in 
Ordinance 13-68 and in the attached staff report, with City Commission 
first reading scheduled for November 14, 2013. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Ordinance 13-68 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 

BLACK LAKE PRESERVE 

ORDINANCE 13-68 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 1 of 20 

ORDINANCE 13-68 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING APPROXIMATELY 35.176 ± ACRES 
OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 
AT 14288, 14350, AND 14362 SIPLIN ROAD AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SUNRIDGE BOULEVARD 
AND SIPLIN ROAD, FROM NO ZONING (NZ) TO PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD); PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN 
PUD REQUIREMENTS AND DESCRIBING THE 
DEVELOPMENT AS THE BLACK LAKE PRESERVE PUD; 
PROVIDING FOR NON-SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 35.176 
± acres of land located at 14288, 14350, and 14362 Siplin Road, at the southwest corner 
of SunRidge Boulevard and Siplin Road, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), desire to 
rezone their property from City NZ to City PUD, and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the 
City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption 
of this Ordinance and the proposed development of the Property is consistent with the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances; therefore, 
 
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning 
classification of the Property, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby 
rezoned from No Zoning (NZ) to Planned Unit Development (PUD) in the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida subject to the following conditions, provisions and restrictions: 
 

a. Conceptual Plan- All development on the Property must substantially 
conform to the requirements identified in the Black Lake Preserve PUD 
Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Should any conflict be 
found between this Ordinance and the Black Lake Preserve PUD 
Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, then the standards and 
conditions established by this Ordinance shall control. 
 

b. Zoning- Unless specifically noted elsewhere in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, 
all residential development on the Property must comply with the general 
zoning requirements of the R-1 Single Family Residential District for any 
structures, including but not limited to swimming pools, screen rooms 
accessory structures and buildings that are developed on the Property. 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 2 of 20 

 
c. Design Criteria/Architectural Standards-  
 

1. Lot Size- Minimum lot width shall be 70 feet; minimum lot depth 
shall be 125 feet. 

 
2. Building Height- Maximum building height shall be 35 feet, not to 

exceed 2 stories. 
 

3. Minimum Living Area- Minimum living area for each residential unit 
shall be 1,500 square feet. 

 
4. Signage- All signage shall be reviewed and permitted by the City of 

Winter Garden. All proposed signage, with the exception of street 
and traffic signs, shall be submitted for review and approval as part 
of the Development Agreement for the Property. 

 
5. Setbacks and Required Yards-  

 
a. Front yard: 25 feet 
b. Rear yard: 25 feet 
c. Side yard: 5 feet 

i. Side yard setbacks shall be no less than 5 feet and 
shall be unobstructed by any mechanical equipment 
including, but not limited to, AC units, pool equipment, 
water filtration systems, gas tanks, propane tanks, and 
any other utility or service equipment; 

ii. Any landscaping and/or fencing installed within the 5 
foot side yard setback shall be designed and 
constructed so as not to interfere with any easement 
function. 

d. Corner/Street Side yard: 15 feet  
 

6. Residential Design Criteria- All development on the Property must 
maintain the same general design criteria and architectural 
characteristics as the Building Elevations attached hereto as Exhibit 
“C”.  

a. Rear elevations of 2-story product types shall include 
architectural features similar to those of the front elevation. 

b. 25% of all dwelling units will have either a 5 foot recessed 
garage or a front porch. 

c. The front porch of a dwelling unit may encroach up to 5 feet 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 3 of 20 

into the front setback. 
d. Dwelling units with 5 foot recessed garage may have reduced 

front yard setback of 20 feet. 
e. A front porch shall be defined as a covered outdoor area at 

and/or adjacent to the front door of the residential dwelling 
unit that extends a minimum of 3 feet on either side of the 
front door and has a minimum depth of 6 feet. 

f. Product types shall be staggered to avoid construction of the 
same elevation side-by-side or across the street.  

7. Common Recreation and Open Space- The Property is located 
within the Resource Protection Overlay, and in compliance with the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Element Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 no less than 25% Wekiva Study 
Area Open Space shall be provided. 

 
None of the 25% Wekiva Study Area Open Space shall be 
chemically treated with pesticides to establish sensitive natural 
habitat. 
 
To the greatest extent possible, 5% of the developable area of the 
Property shall be set aside for passive, dry-land recreational use. In 
the event that this requirement cannot be met wholly or in part, then 
a financial contribution in accordance with Chapter 110, Article V, 
Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances shall be made to the City 
Recreation Fund to fulfill the requirement.  

 
d. Staff Conditions- All development on the Property must comply with the 

following conditions: 
1. The Owner is responsible for meeting all provisions of ADA and 

Florida Accessibility Code. 
2. All work shall conform to City of Winter Garden standards and 

specifications. 
3. The City of Winter Garden will inspect private site improvements only 

to the extent that they connect to City owned/maintained systems 
(roadways, drainage, utilities, etc.).  It is the responsibility of the 
Owner and Design Engineer to ensure that privately owned and 
maintained systems are constructed to the intended specifications.  
The City is not responsible for the operation and maintenance of 
privately owned systems, to include, but not be limited to, roadways, 
parking lots, drainage, stormwater ponds or on-site utilities. 

4. The Contractor is responsible for the notification, location and 
protection of all utilities that may exist within the project limits. 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 4 of 20 

5. No fill or runoff will be allowed to discharge onto adjacent properties; 
existing drainage patterns shall not be altered.  The applicant should 
note that if approval is granted, the City of Winter Garden is not 
granting rights or easements for drainage from, or onto, property 
owned by others.  Obtaining permission, easements or other 
approvals that may be required to drain onto private property is the 
Owner/Developer's responsibility.  Should the flow of stormwater 
runoff from, or onto adjacent properties be unreasonable or cause 
problems, the City will not be responsible and any corrective 
measures required will be the responsibility of the Owner.  Site 
construction shall adhere to the City of Winter Garden erosion and 
sediment control requirements as contained in Chapter 106 - 
Stormwater.  If approval is granted by the City of Winter Garden, it 
does not waive any permits that may be required by federal, state, 
regional, county, municipal or other agencies that may have 
jurisdiction. 

6. After final plan approval, a preconstruction meeting will be required 
prior to any commencement of construction. The applicant shall 
provide an erosion control and street lighting plan at the 
preconstruction meeting and shall pay all engineering review and 
inspection fees prior to construction.  Inspection fees in the amount 
of 2.25% of the cost of all site improvements shall be paid prior to 
issuance of site or building permits. 

7. Landscaping, perimeter fencing, and screen walls shall be located 
within a landscape and wall tract, to be maintained by the HOA. 

8. All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, 
water and storm; improvements shall be centered within the 
easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-way shall include a 
tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

9. Utilities:  Minimum 8” potable water, 8” reuse water, and minimum 6” 
sanitary force main are required. 

10. Proposed 5 ft building setbacks are permitted, provided that no 
obstructions of any kind are allowed within the 5 ft setback area.  
Minimum 5 ft wide utility and drainage easements shall be provided 
on each side lot line. 

11. If gated, the streets will be private and maintained by the HOA.  
While portions of the right-of-way may be dedicated to the City, 
maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, hardscaping, etc. 
shall be performed by the HOA under a Right-of-Way maintenance 
agreement. 

12. Right-of-way width shall be a minimum of 50 feet with minimum 
roadway pavement width of 24’ as required by City Code (12’ 
minimum each lane); 16’ minimum lane width for any divided portion 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 5 of 20 

(additional width may be required if parking is allowed); 18” of clean 
fill with no more than 5% passing a #200 sieve required under the 
subbase (show on typical section); 98% density required on all 
compaction; 2” minimum asphalt thickness; 10” minimum soil 
cement base thickness; minimum 24” wide concrete curb and gutter 
required; 5’ wide concrete sidewalks required on both sides of street; 
minimum 10’ wide drainage and utility easements required adjacent 
to all rights-of-way.  All construction shall meet City of Winter Garden 
requirements for drainage, roadways and utilities. 

13. SunRidge Boulevard has been constructed with two lanes, to be 
expanded as designed, to four lanes. A 5’ wide concrete sidewalk 
will be required along the frontage of SunRidge Boulevard if not 
constructed with the road widening. 

14. Sale of lots prior to recording of final plat is prohibited. 
15. Vehicular access point on SunRidge Boulevard shall be entry only. 

Gate or other similar device preventing vehicular exit from this point 
is required. 
 

 SECTION 2: General Requirements. 
 

a. Developer’s Agreement- A Developer’s Agreement shall be drafted, 
approval obtained and recorded prior to approval of Preliminary Plat of the 
Property and prior to the issuance of any site or building permits. The 
Developer’s Agreement shall include, but is not limited to the following: road 
widening; utilities and other commitments of the development’s master plan; 
project phasing; vehicular access to the site; provisions concerning Owner’s 
design, permitting and construction of access improvements for the Project 
including the realignment of Siplin Road; off-site public infrastructure 
improvements; joint lift station with adjacent property owner; impact fees; 
other conditions and commitments of this Ordinance and the Black Lake 
Preserve PUD Development Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; and 
adherence to all City Codes and Standards. 
 

b. Stand Alone Clause- Each phase of development of the Property must 
operate as an individual unit in that each particular phase will be able to 
stand-alone in the event that no other phase is developed. 

 
c. Land Development Approvals and Permits- This Ordinance does not 

require the City to issue any permit or approval for development, 
construction, preliminary plat, final plat, building permit, or other matter by 
the City relating to the Property or the project or any portion thereof. These 
and any other required City development approvals and permits shall be 
processed and issued by the City in accordance with procedures set forth in 
the City’s Code of Ordinances and subject to this Ordinance.  



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 6 of 20 

 
d. Amendments- Minor amendments to this Ordinance will be achieved by 

Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden. Major 
amendments to this Ordinance will require approval of the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance. 

 
e. Expiration- Expiration of this PUD shall be governed in accordance with 

Section 118-830, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. Time 
extensions may be granted in accordance with Section 118-829, City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. 

 
 SECTION 3: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to 
amend the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held 
invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 5: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
  
 
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2013. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2013. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of,  , 2013,  by the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden, Florida. 

 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 7 of 20 

 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

  
PARCEL ID#:  34-22-27-0000-00-029 & 34-22-27-0000-00-008 

 

 
PARCEL ID#: 34-22-27-0000-00-007 

 

 
 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 8 of 20 

 
Exhibit “B” 

 

COVER PAGE 
 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

PRELIMINARY PLAN 
 

BLACK LAKE PRESERVE  
 

REVISED OCTOBER 2013 
 
 

(6 PAGES - ATTACHED) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 9 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 10 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 11 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 12 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 13 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 14 of 20 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 15 of 20 

Exhibit “C” 
 

Building Elevations 
 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 16 of 20 

 

 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 17 of 20 

 

 
 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 18 of 20 

 

 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 19 of 20 

 

 
 
 



 
Ordinance 13-68 

Page 20 of 20 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
PREPARED BY:   LAURA SMITH, SENIOR PLANNER 
DATE:   NOVEMBER 1, 2013 
SUBJECT:   REZONING 
   BLACK LAKE PRESERVE PROPERTY 
   14288, 14350 & 14362 SIPLIN ROAD (35.176 +/- ACRES) 
    PARCEL ID #  32-22-27-0000-00-008;   32-22-27-0000-00-029 
     32-22-27-0000-00-007 
      
APPLICANT:  HANOVER CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 14288, 14350 & 14362 Siplin Road and is approximately 
35.176± acres. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of 
Winter Garden municipal limits. 

 



Black Lake Preserve Subdivision 
SunRidge Blvd/Siplin Road (35.176 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 November 1, 2013 

Page 2 
 

 

The applicant is requesting to rezone 35.176± acres of land. The subject property was recently 
annexed into the City of Winter Garden and has not yet been assigned a zoning designation. The 
Future Land Use Map of the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan was recently amended 
in conjunction with the annexation of the subject property to designate the subject property SUB- 
Suburban Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan (see 
attached map).  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is primarily vacant unimproved land; however there is one existing single 
family residential structure located on the portion of the property addressed at 14362 Siplin 
Road.  
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north of the subject property is the new school site of SunRidge 
Middle School and SunRidge Elementary School which opened last year in the City of Winter 
Garden, the Future Land Use Designation of the property is Institutional. The properties located 
to the west are vacant properties located within the City of Winter Garden, one containing an 
Orange Grove and the other owned by the City of Winter Garden, since their annexation these 
properties have not been assigned Zoning or Future Land Use Designation on the Future Land 
Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The properties located to the south include vacant 
unimproved land located in Unincorporated Orange County and a Single Family Residential 
structure also located in Unincorporated Orange County. The property to the east is primarily 
vacant land with Future Land Use Designation of Low Density Residential and the Zoning is R-2 
in the City of Winter Garden. 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 35.176 ± acre site into a residential planned unit 
development containing 91 single-family dwelling units. The subdivision is proposed to have a 
gross density of 2.58 dwelling units per acre, the SUB- Suburban Residential Future Land Use 
Designation allows up to 4 dwelling units per acre. The proposed subdivision will contain 2 
recreational parks, walking trails and 8.89 acres of open space. 
The proposed project will contain a mixture of 70’x125’ lots and 75’x125’ lots, with a total of 44 
lots at between 70’ and 75’ wide and 47 lots at 75’ or wider. 
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
Potable Water, Reclaimed Water, and Wastewater Services 

The proposed residential development will be served by and required to connect to City of 
Winter Garden water, wastewater, and reclaimed water which are available and have 
adequate capacity to serve the proposed residential development. At such time that the 
property is developed, all necessary utility lines will be extended and connections made, 
all extension and connection costs shall be borne by the property owner.  

 



Black Lake Preserve Subdivision 
SunRidge Blvd/Siplin Road (35.176 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 November 1, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 

Stormwater 
The stormwater retention/detention facilities designed to service the proposed development 
will meet or exceed the LOS Standards stated in Policy 4-1.1.1 of the Public Facilities 
Element included in the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan. In addition, the 
stormwater facilities will be designed in accordance with St. Johns River Water 
Management District and City of Winter Garden requirements. 

Common Recreation and Open Space 
The proposed residential development is located within the Wekiva Study Area Resource 
Protection Overlay, and in accordance with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use Element Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 no less than 25% Wekiva Study Area 
Open Space shall be provided. None of the 25% Wekiva Study Area Open Space shall be 
chemically treated with pesticides to establish sensitive natural habitat. 
To the greatest extent possible, 5% of the developable area of the Property shall be set aside 
for passive, dry-land recreational use. In the event that this requirement cannot be met 
wholly or in part, then a financial contribution in accordance with Chapter 110, Article V, 
Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances shall be made to the City Recreation Fund to 
fulfill the requirement.  

The proposed development will have 8.89 +/- acres of open space, consisting of Wekiva 
Study Area Open Space and passive, dry-land recreational uses. 

All of the common recreation and open space will be maintained by a homeowner’s 
association and available to the residents.  The developer shall establish a homeowner’s 
association in accordance with Chapter 720, Florida Statutes and having governing 
documents in compliance with Chapter 110 of the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances. 

Environment 
The subject property is located within the Wekiva Study Area Resource Protection 
Overlay. The developers are required to provide a minimum of 25% of the gross 
developable area as Wekiva Open Space as stated in Policies 1-3.1.7 and 1-3.1.8 of the 
Future Land Use Element included in the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan.  

Transportation 
The property’s primary point of vehicular access is from SunRidge Blvd which will 
continue to be the primary access point with the development of the property. However, 
SunRidge Blvd will be an entry only access point with a secondary access (entry and 
exit) point on Siplin Road. With the development of this property and in conjunction with 
the development of the Mathews Grove property located on the east side of Siplin Road, 
there will be a realignment of Siplin Road through the Mathews Grove property.  

Other Services 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services 
regularly provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The 
property will be served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter 



Black Lake Preserve Subdivision 
SunRidge Blvd/Siplin Road (35.176 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 November 1, 2013 

Page 4 
 

 

Garden Fire Department under the First Response System. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Ordinance subject to the following condition: 

• Prior to any further approvals the property owner shall enter into a Developer’s 
Agreement which, in addition to other commitments, specifies the cooperation and 
obligations of the Black Lake Preserve owner/developer and the Mathews Grove 
owner/developer to construct the realignment of Siplin Road and a joint lift station. 

Rezoning the subject property from City NZ to City PUD is consistent with the Future Land Use 
Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and is consistent with the trend of development in the 
area. The proposed development is compatible and consistent with the uses in the surrounding 
area. The proposed development of the subject property is consistent with the goals, objectives 
and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and land development regulations. 
MAPS 

AERIAL PHOTO 
BLACK LAKE PRESERVE SUBDIVISION 

 
ZONING MAP 



Black Lake Preserve Subdivision 
SunRidge Blvd/Siplin Road (35.176 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 November 1, 2013 

Page 5 
 

 

BLACK LAKE PRESERVE SUBDIVISION 

 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP 



Black Lake Preserve Subdivision 
SunRidge Blvd/Siplin Road (35.176 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 November 1, 2013 

Page 6 
 

 

BLACK LAKE PRESERVE SUBDIVISION 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT  


	Item #5.pdf
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM


